
Please ask for Democratic Services DDI (01362) 656225
e-mail: democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMISSION

Date & Time - Thursday, 12th July, 2018 at 2.00 pm

Venue - Anglia Room, The Conference Suite, 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least 
two working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is 

available, this will be provided, and reported to Committee.

Members of the OSC

Councillor E. Gould (Chairman)
Mr D. R. R. Oliver (Vice-Chairman)
Mr P. M. M. Dimoglou
Mr R. F. W. Brame
Mr D. M. Crawford
Mr T. J. Jermy

Mr A.P. Joel
Mr R.G. Kybird
Mrs S.M. Matthews
Mr M. J. Nairn
Mr R. R. Richmond

Substitute Members
Cllr CR Bowes
Mr H Clarke
Mr J Newton
Mr P Wilkinson

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE 
REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE 

TELEPHONES
Democratic Services 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE

Date: Tuesday 3 July 2018

Public Document Pack





Overview and Scrutiny Commission
12 July 2018

PROTOCOL

Working Style of the Overview & Scrutiny Commission (OSC) and Other 
Scrutiny Bodies

This document sets out the roles of Members and Officers, and the general principles to be adopted 
by the OSC and other scrutiny bodies such as Scrutiny Task and Finish Groups.

Member Leadership

Members of the OSC will take the lead in selecting topics for overview and scrutiny and will recognise 
that best practice identifies scrutiny as a non-executive Member-led activity. The OSC will expect 
Cabinet members to take prime responsibility for answering their questions about topics which chiefly 
relate to the Council’s activities.

A Constructive Atmosphere

Meetings of the OSC will be constructive and not judgmental. The Commission recognises and 
accepts that effective scrutiny is best achieved through challenging and constructive enquiry. People 
giving evidence should be given due respect and not made to feel under attack.

Independence 

Members of the OSC/task and finish groups will not be subject to whipping arrangements by the party 
groups.

Respect and Trust

Meetings will be conducted in a spirit of mutual respect and trust.

Consensus

Members of the OSC/task and finish groups will work together and, while recognising political 
allegiances, will attempt to achieve consensus and agreed targeted recommendations. There will be 
recognition that the OSC has a primary duty to scrutinise on behalf of the community.

Openness and Transparency

The OSC’s business will be open and transparent, except where there are sound reasons for 
protecting confidentiality. The minutes of the Commission’s meetings will explain the discussion and 
debate so that they can be understood by an outside reader.

Impartial and Independent Officer Advice

Officers who advise and support scrutiny will give impartial and independent advice, as officers 
support all members of the Council.

Regular Review

There will be regular reviews of how the scrutiny process is working, and a willingness to change if it 
is not working effectively.

Programming and Planning 

It is the responsibility of the OSC and the wider non-executive to determine its work programme and 
to allocate specific reviews either through a dedicated task and finish group or to undertake a review 
itself. Before each topic/review is commenced, the O&SC will agree the scope of the exercise, what 
information they will need initially, and which members, officers and external witnesses they wish to 
see.



Managing Time

The OSC will aim to conclude the business of each meeting in reasonable time. The order of business 
will be arranged as far as possible to minimise the demands on the time of witnesses. 

Member/Officer Roles

Executive members will regularly be called to account for the decisions they have made and to 
explain progress in key areas of their portfolio – and in the case of the Council Leader – the Council 
as a whole. Members will be expected to produce and present a brief written account of their 
executive activities and will then be questioned by members of the OSC for a period no longer than 20 
minutes.

Co-optees

“Expert witnesses” may be co-opted onto scrutiny task and finish groups to provide technical 
assistance to the review. Co-optees possess no voting rights.

Substitutes

Substitute members will be so listed on the agenda papers of the Overview & Scrutiny Commission. It 
is a member responsibility to alert a substitute in the event that she/he cannot attend a meeting. 



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
12 July 2018

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Page(s)
herewith

1. MINUTES To Follow
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 31 May 2018.

2. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTES 
To receive apologies for absence and to note substitute Members in 
attendance.

3. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY) 

4. URGENT BUSINESS 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972.

5. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate for the entire 
consideration of the matter, in respect of any matter in which a Member 
has a disclosable pecuniary interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the 
Localism Act 2011.  Members are also required to withdraw from the 
meeting room as stated in the Standing Orders of this Council.

6. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING 
To note the names of any non-members or public speakers wishing to 
address the meeting.

7. EXECUTIVE MEMBER PORTFOLIO UPDATE 
To receive an update from Councillor Alison Webb, Executive Member for 
People and Information has been invited to attend the meeting to update 
Members on key ongoing projects within her portfolio and to answer any 
questions.

8. COMMUNITY ASSET REGISTER POLICY 
To receive a verbal report from the Communities Manager.

9. MARKET TOWN INITIATIVE 
To receive a verbal update from the Communities Manager on how the 
Market Town Initiative is working across the five market towns. 

10. FLY-TIPPING UPDATE 
To receive a verbal update from the Communities Manager on the costs of 
clearing fly-tipping within the District since May 2018 and number of 
reports received.



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
12 July 2018

Page(s)
herewith

11. NEW PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 8 - 15
To receive a report from the Deputy Leader and Executive Member for 
Strategy, Governance and Transformation, Councillor Sam Chapman-
Allen.

12. CAPITA 
To receive a presentation from the Director of Planning & Building Control.

13. TASK AND FINISH GROUPS 
To receive a verbal update from Task & Finish Group Chairman in respect 
of the following meeting:

a) Housing Task & Finish Group

14. OUTSIDE BODY FEEDBACK (STANDING ITEM) 
To receive an update from representatives on Outside Bodies.

15. SCRUTINY CALL-INS (STANDING ITEM) 
To note whether any decisions have been called-in for scrutiny.

16. COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION (STANDING ITEM) 
To consider any references.

17. WORK PROGRAMME 16 - 22
(a) A copy of the Commission’s work programme is attached.  The 

Commission is asked to agree any additions, deletions or 
amendments to the programme as appropriate.

(b) Member Issues:  In accordance with the Commission’s protocol for 
member leadership, which states that members of the Commission 
will take the lead in selecting topics for overview and scrutiny and 
in the questioning of witnesses, members are invited to put forward 
items for selection for future review.

A copy of the Key Decision Plan is attached for Members’ information.

18. NEXT MEETING 
To note the arrangements of a Special Meeting to be held on Friday 17 
August at 10.00am in the Anglia Room, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham.



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
12 July 2018

Page(s)
herewith

19. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
To consider passing the following resolution:

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Act”.

PART B – ITEM FROM WHICH THE PRESS AND THE PUBLIC ARE 
EXCLUDED  

20. MINUTES To Follow
To agree the restricted minute from the meeting held on 31 May 2018.



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Member for Strategy, Governance and Transformation

To: Overview and Scrutiny Commission – 12th July 2018
Cabinet – 24th July 2018

Author: Charlotte Paine – Senior Business Intelligence Officer 

Subject: Performance Indicator Proposed Changes

Purpose: To provide the proposed performance indicator changes which align with 
the 2018/19 corporate plan

Recommendation(s): 

1)  To agree the proposed performance indicators for 2018/19

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The quarterly performance reports provide Members and residents a summary of the status 
of the Council’s key indicators. The purpose of these indicators is to provide information 
about the Council’s delivery against its Corporate Priorities and on the Council’s Corporate 
Health.  

1.2 The corporate plan annual refresh was agreed at full Council in February 2018. The 
proposed changes to reporting are to ensure that the indicators reported are aligned and 
relevant to the new corporate plan. Some indicators are given to provide context of the 
outlook of the District.

1.3 The attached (appendix A) details the indicators that are proposed with rationale for which 
indicators should remain, be added or be removed.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Agree the proposals as attached

2.2 Propose changes to the attached

2.3 Do nothing

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 The new suite of indicators provide a better level of assurance of the performance of the 
Council and its key priorities as set by the corporate plan 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Not applicable.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

8

Agenda Item 11



5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the 
Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 Constitution and Legal Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 Contracts implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 The report presents the proposed performance indicators of the corporate priorities.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights implications have been considered and it is the 
opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 Financial implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications.

5.8 Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1 Health & Wellbeing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications.

5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 Risk implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that there 
are no implications.

5.10 Staffing

5.10.1 Staffing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications.

5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.12.1 Stakeholder / Consultation / Timescale implications have been considered and it is the 
opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

9



6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No Wards or Communities are affected

7.0 ACRONYMS 

Background papers:- See The Committee Report Guide
Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Charlotte Paine – Senior Business Intelligence Officer
Telephone Number: 07870 835233
Email: charlotte.paine@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Charlotte Paine – Senior Business Intelligence Officer

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Proposed Performance Indicator Changes

10

file://bcf01.intranet.breckland.gov.uk/corporate_improvement_performance/Performance/Reports/BDC%20OSC%20Cabinet/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
file://bcf01.intranet.breckland.gov.uk/corporate_improvement_performance/Performance/Reports/BDC%20OSC%20Cabinet/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:charlotte.paine@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


Indicator Description Status Rationale Target
Value of Grants The total amount of 

grant money that has 
been awarded via the 
community 
development team

New Links to Critical Activity 4 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
delivery of grant funding 
to communities

Data Only

Breckland Lottery 
(Value awarded)

The overall amount of 
money that has been 
awarded via the 
Breckland lottery

New Links to Critical Activity 4 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
success of the lottery 
initiative

Data Only

% of FOI requests 
responded to 
within the time 
limit

Of the FOI's responded 
to in the month, the 
percentage of ones 
that were responded 
to within the statutory 
20 day timescale

New Links to Critical Activity 
11 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the delivery of statutory 
requirement to respond 
to FOIs

More than 
95%

New website 
visitors

Number of new 
visitors to the Council's 
website

New Links to Critical Activity 7 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
Councils drive to provide 
accessible services

Data Only

Fly tipping - 
tonnes

Estimated tonnage of 
Waste collected from 
fly tipping

New Links to Critical Activity 7 
of new corporate plan 
and provide assurance of 
the impact of County 
policy changes

Data Only

Garden Waste 
Revenue 
Generated 

Amount of revenue 
generated from 
garden waste 
subscriptions

New Links to Critical Activity 8 
of new corporate plan 
and provide assurance of 
the success of the garden 
waste scheme for 
generating income

Annual 
Target - 
£488,214.50
(Average of 
year)

Number of 
Incidents of Fly 
Tipping

Number of reported fly 
tipping incidents 
collected by Serco

New Links to Critical Activity 7 
of new corporate plan 
and provide assurance of 
the impact of County 
policy changes

Data only

Gross income 
generated by 
EHT&C

The amount of gross 
income generated by 
the Environmental 
Health, Training and 
consultancy 
commercial trading 
arm

New Links to Critical Activity 8 
of new corporate plan 
and provide assurance of 
the success of EHT&C for 
generating income

Annual 
Target – 
£178,000

Net income 
generated by 
EHT&C

The amount of net 
income (surplus after 
expenditure) 
generated by the 
Environmental Health, 
Training and 

New Links to Critical Activity 8 
of new corporate plan 
and provide assurance of 
the success of EHT&C for 
generating income

Annual 
Target - 
£118,000

11



consultancy 
commercial trading 
arm

Food Businesses 
Rated 'Generally 
Satisfactory' or 
Above

The % of rateable food 
businesses with a 
rating of 3 (generally 
satisfactory), 4 (good) 
or 5 (very good) as a % 
of the total number of 
rateable businesses

New Links to Critical Activity 
11 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the food establishments 
in the district

Data Only

% of time lost to 
sickness

% of time lost in hours 
due to sickness

New Links to Critical Activity 
12 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the performance of the 
Council for managing 
sickness

Data Only

Empty Properties 
- Back in Use

Number of empty 
properties brought 
back into use through 
direct intervention by 
the council i.e. Restore 
Grant. 

New Links to Critical Activity 
21 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the work to bring empty 
properties back into use 
which can improve new 
homes bonus

10

Local 
Unemployment 
Levels

Figures from external 
sources to provide 
context on the District

New Links to Critical Activity 
18 of new corporate plan 
to provide context on the 
district

Data Only

% of Major 
applications 
determined 
within 13 weeks 
or agreed 
extension

% determined within 
13 weeks (or with 
agreed extension) 

New Links to Critical Activity 7 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
performance of the 
planning process in 
regards to planning 
application determination

Average 
Annual 
target – 
higher than 
90%

% of Minor 
applications 
determined 
within 8 weeks or 
agreed extension

% determined within 8 
weeks (or with agreed 
extension)

New Links to Critical Activity 7 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
performance of the 
planning process in 
regards to planning 
application determination

Average 
annual 
target – 
higher than 
70%

Commercial 
Property Average 
Yield

This is the net yield 
across the commercial 
property (investment 
assets)

New Links to Critical Activity 
13 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the performance of the 
commercial property 
portfolio

Average 
annual 
target - 6%

Commercial 
Property Gross 
Rental Income

This is the total gross 
rental income that is 
forecast to be 
achieved from the 

New Links to Critical Activity 
13 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the performance of the 

Annual 
target - 
£567,939.30

12



Commercial Property 
assets including 
Riverside and Barnham 
Broom.

commercial property 
portfolio

New Homes 
Delivered

The number of new 
homes delivered by 
the council (acquired 
directly, built directly 
or enabled by the 
authority from direct 
intervention)

New Links to Critical Activity 
13 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the performance of the 
commercial property 
portfolio

Annual 
target - 612

New Affordable 
Homes Delivered

The number of new 
affordable dwellings 
completed within the 
district during the 
period

New Links to Critical Activity 2 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
number of affordable 
homes delivered in the 
district

Data only

% of complaints 
responded to 
within agreed 
timescales

Of the complaints 
responded to in the 
period, the percentage 
of ones that were 
responded to within 
the agreed timescale

New Links to Critical Activity 
11 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the performance of 
complaint responding

Annual 
Target – 
more than 
90% 
(average)

% of Calls 
Abandoned

% of calls that are 
answered by an 
appropriate member 
of staff from the total 
of calls offered

Keep Links to Critical Activity 7 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
Councils drive to provide 
accessible services

Annual 
Average – 
less than 
10.1%

% of household 
waste recycled or 
composted

% of household waste 
which has been 
recycled and 
composted (includes 
garden waste) against 
all the household 
waste collected

Keep Links to Critical Activity 5 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
performance of the waste 
service in addressing 
recycling contamination 
to secure more income 
from recycling credits

Annual 
Target – 
more than  
41.01%

Missed Waste 
Collections

Number of missed 
waste collections per 
100,000 households

Keep Links to Critical Activity 5 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
performance of the waste 
service 

Annual 
Target – less 
than 15 
(average)

Cases Prevented 
from 
Homelessness 
per 1,000 
Households

P1E Return - 
Prevention and 
Relieving of 
Homelessness (No. of 
potentially homeless 
cases diverted from 
homelessness per 
1,000 households)

Keep Links to Critical Activity 
21 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the performance of the 
housing service to 
support prevention of 
homelessness

Data Only

13



Housing Benefit 
LA Error Rate

Local Authority error in 
Housing Benefit 
overpayment Amount 
of benefits overpaid 
divided by benefits 
paid (% of overall 
expenditure)

Keep Links to Critical Activity 7 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
Councils drive to provide 
accessible services

Annual 
Target – less 
than 0.35%

Net Business 
Rates receipts

Actual revenue 
collected in respect of 
Business Rates against 
budget

Keep Links to Critical Activity 
19 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the Councils performance 
in regards to collection of 
business rates

Annual 
Target - 
£682,839

Net Council Tax 
receipts

Actual revenue 
collected in respect of 
Council Tax against the 
amount which the 
authority has 
budgeted

Keep Links to Critical Activity 7 
of new corporate plan to 
provide assurance of the 
Councils performance in 
regards to council tax 
collection

Annual 
Target - 
£144,259.54

Commercial 
Property 
Occupancy

Target is to achieve 
90% occupancy level of 
the Council's 
commercial property 
(investment, non-
operational) assets 
which excludes 
operational assets 
Calculated by total 
floor space let over the 
total lettable space.

Keep Links to Critical Activity 
13 of new corporate plan 
to provide assurance of 
the performance of the 
commercial property 
portfolio

Annual 
target – 98% 
or more

Staff turnover % % of total leavers 
against total number 
of staff employed in 
period (includes 
involuntary leavers)
Target is 10% which 
has been 
benchmarked

Keep Monitored on an 
operational level and 
within risk reporting to 
members

Quarterly 
target – Less 
than 2.5%

% of Customer 
Complaints 
Upheld - Stage 1

Complaints upheld as a 
% of all stage 1 
complaints closed in 
period This is 
calculated using the 
number of complaints 
upheld divided by the 
total number of 
complaints closed in 
the period

Remove Added an alternative that 
captures the % of 
complaints responded to 
within timescale which 
measures performance in 
a better way

Target  - 
Less than 
25%

Average Wait 
Time in Seconds

Average Time to 
Answer Phone calls in 
Seconds

Remove Indicator is not indicative 
of good satisfaction 
levels. Looking to 

Average 
target – Less 

14



understand the best way 
to measure satisfaction of 
service

than 150 
seconds

Residual Waste 
per Household 
(kg)

Number of Kg’s of 
residual waste 
collected per 
household. Calculated 
by 'residual waste 
collected' x 1016.5 
then divided by 
number of households 
waste has been 
collected from

Remove Monitored on an 
operational and portfolio 
level with more relevant 
waste measures  
reported  including 
introducing fly tipping 
indicators

Data Only

% Return on Cash 
Investment 
(Treasury Yield)

The % return received 
on cash invested 

Remove Finance measures are 
reported through finance 
channels and risk 
reporting

Annual 
target – 
More than 
0.32%

Short term 
investment 
Income Forecast

Net variance from 
expected (budgeted) 
interest expected 

Remove Finance measures are 
reported through finance 
channels and risk 
reporting

Annual 
target - -
£22853

SERCO Net 
Expenditure 
Variance

Net variance from 
expected (budgeted) 
spend - 'Significant 
Contract' Owned by 
Environmental 
Services 

Remove Finance measures are 
reported through finance 
channels and risk 
reporting

Annual 
Target - £0

Capita Net 
Expenditure 
Variance

Net variance from 
expected (budgeted) 
spend - 'Significant 
Contract' Owned by 
Planning 

Remove Finance measures are 
reported through finance 
channels and risk 
reporting

Annual 
Target - £0

PFI Net 
Expenditure 
Variance

Net variance from 
expected (budgeted) 
spend - 'Significant 
Contract' Owned by 
Community 
Development as above 

Remove Finance measures are 
reported through finance 
channels and risk 
reporting

Annual 
Target - £0

15



Overview Scrutiny Work Programme 2018/19

This is an outline programme only and will be amended as issues arise or priorities change

Date Topic Member / Director / Lead Officer Objectives & Desired Outcomes

12 July 2018 Portfolio Update Executive Member for People and 
Information Cllr A Webb

An update on Customer Services & IT.

Market Town Initiative Steve James Verbal update on how the five Market towns are working  
in terms of the Market town initiative and what each town 
have spent the budget on that has been given to them.  

New Performance Indicators Charlotte Paine business Intelligence 
Officer

To provide OSC with an oversight of the proposed new 
performance indicators for 2018/2019.

Community Asset Register Policy Steve James Verbal update on the policy
Capita Alex Chrusciak

Receive a presentation following questions from Elizabeth

**standing item** Flytipping Steve James To receive figures for costs of clearing flytips since May 
2018 and number of reports received.

27 September 2018 Corporate Update Leader William Nunn
Qtr 1 2018-2019 Performance 
Overview

Deputy Leader, Exec Member for 
Strategy, Governance and 
Transformation. Greg Pearson

To provide an update on Council Performance for the 
period 01/04/2018 -30/06/2018

Member/Officer Protocol Executive Member for Governance Cllr 
M Robinson

Safeguarding Policy Donna Hall, Licensing & Business 
Support Mgr

To review the Breckland Council Safeguarding policy for 
Children and Adults

Open for Business Greg Pearson 
**standing item** Flytipping Steve James To receive figures for costs of clearing flytips since July 2018 

and number of reports received.

16

A
genda Item

 17



Overview Scrutiny Work Programme 2018/19

This is an outline programme only and will be amended as issues arise or priorities change

08 November 2018 Vexatious Policy Greg Pearson Report on the application of the Council's Vexatious Policy. 
To Provide the Commission an update on the Council's 
Vexatious Policy.

Recycling changes NCC Norfolk County Council Waste 
Management

NCC Waste Management team invited to present to 
Members and answer questions regarding the changes to 
Recycling Centres in April 2018. Successes and challenges of 
it. (potential following standing item at prev meetings)

Shopappy Steve James To receive verbal update on Shopappy which launched in 
April 2018

RIPA Policy Update Mark Stinson Annual report to Executive Members on the number of 
RIPA authorisations and on the fitness of the policy and 
procedures

QTR 2 2018-2019 Performance 
Overview

Deputy Leader, Executive Member for 
Strategy, Governance and 
Transformation. Greg Pearson

To provide an update on Council Performance for the 
period 01/07/2018-30/09/2018

31 January 2019

07 March 2019 QTR 3 2018-2019 Performance 
Overview

Deputy Leader, Executive Member for 
Strategy, Governance and 
Transformation. Greg Pearson

To provide an update on Council Performance for the 
period 01/10/2018-31/12/0218

30 May 2019 QTR 4 2018-2019 Performance 
Overview

Deputy Leader, Executive Member for 
Stratefy, Governance and 
Transformation. Greg Pearson

To provide an update on Council Performance for the 
period 01/01/2019-31/03/2019

17



Overview Scrutiny Work Programme 2018/19

This is an outline programme only and will be amended as issues arise or priorities change

Topics to be scheduled (These are topics raised by Members)
Date Topic Member / Director / Lead Officer Objectives & Desired Outcomes
27th September Intelligent Council Anna Graves / Greg Pearson To receive an update on being an 'Intelligent Council' and 

how this is progressing

tbc Norfolk County Council - Schools Through Local Plan document – more developments will be 
built over coming years, but our schools are full.  How will 
NCC plan for this?

tbc Norfolk County Council - Highways Question - look at levels of roads & drainage & how 
Highways deal with this.

tbc Consider a project to support 
encourage market towns to 
support tourism

tbc Contractual Performance Review the Planning & Building Control contract
tbc Public Toilets Simon Taylor-Avery How have the towns used the money given to them and are 

the toilets still in use?
tbc Health task & finish group To arrange a T&F group to discuss health issues within the 

district
tbc Online GP surgeries To look at the consequences of registering with an online 

surgery - ie: becoming deregistered at Local GP surgery.

18



1 

 

KEY DECISION PLAN 
 

VERSION 08/18 

 Issued –  
Effective for Period: 
 01/08/18 - 31/07/19 

 

 
Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision is likely to be made, to:   

Julie Britton, Democratic Services Officer, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham, Norfolk, NR19 1EE. 
Telephone 01362 656343 Email democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk 

 
The Key Decision Plan shows all key and significant decisions that are likely to be made over the next twelve months 

 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is expected to be made.  . 
 
Key decisions are Executive decisions involving expenditure or savings exceeding 25% of the budget sum approved for a particular service or function, or a decision which 
significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral divisions. 
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any 
non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, 
particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies) 
 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION 

Deputy Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Strategy, 
Governance and 
Transformation 
 
PFI 
Benchmarking 
 

To consider a request from the PFI Contractor in respect 
of the 2019 Benchmarking Procedure 
 

See report 
 

PFI Benchmarking 
 

Cabinet 24 Jul 2018 
 

19

mailto:democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk


 

2 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION 

Executive 
Member for 
Growth 
 
Local Energy 
East Strategy 
 

To consider council endorsement of the Local Energy 
East Strategy 
 

See report 
 

Local Energy East 
Strategy 
 

Cabinet 24 Jul 2018 
 

Deputy Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Strategy, 
Governance and 
Transformation, 
Executive 
Member for 
Place (Health 
Lead) 
 
Community 
Reserve 
Potential Projects 
 

To provide the Cabinet with some potential project 
options that could be funded from the Community 
Reserve for consideration. 
 

See report 
 
 

Community 
Reserve Potential 
Projects 
 

Cabinet 24 Jul 2018 
 

Executive 
Member for 
Place (Health 
Lead) 
 
Motor Neuron 
Disease (MND) 
Charter 
 

To consider whether the Council wishes to show its 
support by signing the Motor Neuron 
Charter. 
 

See report 
 

Motor Neuron 
Disease (MND) 
Charter 
 

Cabinet 24 Jul 2018 
 

20



 

3 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION 

Executive 
Member for 
Growth 
 
Kingsfleet 
Sustainable 
Urban Extension 
Thetford - 
Acceptance of 
Housing 
Infrastructure 
Fund 
 

A report to consider the acceptance of HIF funding to 
support the delivery of the Kingsfleet Sustainable Urban 
Extension, Thetford 

 

See report 
 

Kingsfleet 
Sustainable Urban 
Extension Thetford 
- Acceptance of 
Housing 
Infrastructure Fund 
 

Council 25 Oct 2018 
 

Executive 
Member for 
Finance 
 
Draft Budget, 
Medium Term 
financial Plan 
and Capital 
Strategy 2019-20 
 

To consider the draft capital and revenue budget 
estimates, the medium term financial plan and the 
capital strategy for 2019-20 
 

See report 
 

Draft Budget, 
Medium Term 
financial Plan and 
Capital Strategy 
2019-20 
 

Cabinet 27 Nov 2018 
 

Executive 
Member for 
Finance 
 
Budget, Medium 
Term Plan and 
Capital Strategy 
2019-20 
 

To consider and approve the capital and revenue budget 
estimates and proposed council tax, the financial 
medium term plan and the capital strategy 
 

See report 
 

Budget, Medium 
Term Plan and 
Capital Strategy 
2019-20 
 

Cabinet 5 Feb 2019 
 
Council 21 Feb 2019 
 

21



 

4 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION 

Executive 
Member for 
Finance 
 
Treasury 
Management 
Policy & Strategy 
2019-20 
 

This report outlines the Council’s Prudential Indicators 
for 2019-20 to 2022-23 and sets out the expected 
treasury operations for this period and requests a 
recommendation to Full Council to approve the Treasury 
Management Policy, Strategy and Prudential Indicators 
for 2019-20 to 2022-23 
 

See report 
 

Treasury 
Management 
Policy & Strategy 
2019-20 
 

Governance & Audit Committee 15 
Feb 2019 
 

Executive 
Member for 
Finance 
 
Council Tax 
Setting 2019-20 
 

To set the amounts of Council Tax applicable for 2019-
20 for each valuation band and in each part of the 
district 
 

See report 
 

Council Tax Setting 
2019-20 
 

Council 21 Feb 2019 
 

Deputy Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Strategy, 
Governance and 
Transformation 
 
Corporate Plan 
2019-2023 
 

To seek adoption of the Council's new four year 
corporate plan that sets the organisation's strategic 
direction from 2019-23. 

 

See report 
 

Corporate Plan 
2019-2023 
 

Council 21 Feb 2019 
 

 
 

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 
 

Julie Britton, Democratic Services Officer, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham, Norfolk, NR19 1EE. 
Telephone 01362 656343 Email democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk  

 
 

22

mailto:democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

	Agenda
	11 New Performance Indicators
	Appendix 1 for New Performance Indicators

	17 Work Programme
	Sheet1
	Key Decision Plan (August 2018)
	The Key Decision Plan shows all key and significant decisions that are likely to be made over the next twelve months



